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The Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust (PCT)
Publication Scheme
The Publication Scheme is in three parts, as follows:

PART ONE: Introduction

PART TWO: The Classes of Information that we hold

PART THREE:  Bodies which monitor/inspect our performance.  
PART ONE: Introduction

What a Publication Scheme is?

The Freedom of Information Act recognises that as a member of the public you have the right to know how public services such as the NHS are organised and run, how much they cost and how you can make complaints if you need to. You have the right to know which services are being provided, the targets that are being set, the standards of services that are expected and the results achieved.

This Publication Scheme is a complete guide to the information routinely

published by Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust (PCT). It is available on our

website at www.oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk, and in hard copy. It is a description of

the information about our PCT which we make publicly available. We shall review the Scheme at regular intervals and monitor its content and how it is operating.

It is important to us that this Scheme meets your needs and we have designed it to be a route map so that you can find information about Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust easily. Under Section 19 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (there is a link to the Act in Part Three), the PCT has a legal duty to adopt and maintain a Publication Scheme for the publication of PCT information. The purpose of the Act is to promote greater openness by public authorities, which includes NHS organisations.

How do I use this Publication Scheme?

Throughout the Scheme there are references to key documents held by the PCT or links to other relevant organisations or information. To access the documents, if you are viewing this Scheme on the internet, simply follow the given website links. If you require a paper copy of a particular document, please contact the Publication Scheme Coordinator, or the person named in the relevant section of the document. If you require a large print or audio version or a translation of the Scheme, please contact the Publication Scheme Coordinator, see details below:

Freedom of Information Officer

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

foi@oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk 

What information do I have a right to access?

At the present time, in addition to accessing the information identified in this

Publication Scheme, you are entitled to request information about Oxfordshire 

Primary Care Trust under the NHS Openness Code 1995. A link to this is

available in Part 3 of the Scheme and hard copies are available free of charge

from the Department of Health at DH Publications, PO Box 777, London SE1

6XH.

Sometimes, some or all of the information cannot be provided and we will explain the reasons why when this happens.

From 1 January 2005, The PCT has been obliged to respond within 20 days to written requests (in any form) about the information it holds.  Under the Data Protection Act 1998 you are also entitled to access your clinical

records or any other personal information held about you. To do this, please

contact the Publication Scheme Coordinator in the first instance.

How is this information stored?

There are 16 classes of information described within this Scheme. We will state how you can obtain the information outlined within each Class. This will either be via the web site www.oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk or as a hard copy or other media as stated within each Class.

Information falling into the Classes will be retained in line with the PCT’s retention and disposal schedules, which comply with the Records Management NHS Code of Practice April 2006 and Public Record Office Guidance.

Is there a charge for any of the information?

All documents which are available to download from the website, unless specified otherwise will be free of charge. There may be a charge for copies of some information and details can be found in Class 16.

Is there any information which is not covered by the Freedom of

Information Act?

Certain information is exempt from disclosure under the terms of the Act. A list of the main exemptions is below:

• Any personal data

• Discussions relating to specific individuals or cases

• Information provided in confidence

• Information likely to prejudice the commercial or security interests of

• any person or government organisation

• Information subject to legal privilege

Any document listed in this publication scheme as available on request will therefore be disclosed minus any exempt information it contains.

Patient Confidentiality

The Freedom of Information Act does not change the right of patients to protection of their patient confidentiality in accordance with Article 8 of the Human Rights Convention, the Data Protection Act and at common law.

Maintaining the legal right to patient confidentiality continues to be an important commitment on our part. To help with this, we have appointed someone who is called a Caldicott Guardian, and who has responsibility to ensure that the protection of patient confidentiality throughout the Trust is in accordance with your legal rights.

A useful reference website on the subject of Caldicott can be accessed at

http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Managingyourorganisation/Informationpolicy/Patientconfidentialityandcaldicottguardians/index.htm . This gives a wealth of information around the subject of patient confidentiality, as well as access to the full text of the Caldicott Report.

At Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust, our Caldicott Guardian is:

Director of Planning and System Reform

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

Feedback

We welcome suggestions about how this Publication Scheme and the

publications themselves might be improved. If you have any comments about

the Scheme, or if you have difficulty accessing any information, please contact:

Freedom of Information Officer

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

foi@oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk

If you have a complaint about the Publication Scheme or the way in which your request for information has handled, please contact:

Complaints Manager

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

pals@oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk 

PART TWO: The Classes of Information

The information is grouped into broad categories as follows:
1. The NHS and how we fit

2. Who we are

3. Financial and Funding Information

4. Corporate Information

5. Aims, Targets and Achievements 

6. Our Services

7. The Primary Care Trust and Independent Practitioners

8. Reports and Independent Enquiries

9. Policies and Procedures

10. Public Involvement and Consultation

11. Regular publications and information for the public

12. Complaints 

13. Human Resources

14. Communications with the Press and Media Releases 

15. Environmental Information 

16. This Publication Scheme

1. The NHS and how we fit
National Structure of the NHS

The NHS is the largest organisation in Europe and constitutes a major part of the public sector of Great Britain. The strategic direction of the PCT is guided by the Department of Health and the principles set out in the NHS Plan. The

Department of Health website at www.dh.gov.uk  has links to key national

strategies that guide the NHS nationally.

Listed below are the web links to key planning documents outlining how we fit

into the NHS structure.

NHS Plan

This document was published in 2000 and is a ten year plan which sets out how increased funding and reform aim to redress geographical inequalities, improve service standards, and extend patient choice. It is available

online at www.dh.gov.uk  The NHS Plan is also published by The Stationery

Office priced £15, Command Paper 4818 – 1.
Copies may be ordered from:

The Stationery Office

(mail, telephone and fax orders only)

PO Box 29, Norwich NR3 1GN

Telephone orders 0870 600 5522

Fax orders 0870 600 5533

www.thestationeryoffice.com 

There are a number of supplementary documents which have been published

following the original publication of the NHS plan. Details are available from

www.dh.gov.uk.

National Standards, Local Action: Health and Social Care Standards and Planning Framework 05/-6 – 07/08

This document sets out a standard-based planning framework for health and

social care and standards for NHS health care to be used in planning,

commissioning and delivering services. It covers the core and development

standards covering NHS health care and the health and social care planning

framework and targets for 2005-2008.

It is available online at www.dh.gov.uk or available from:

DH Publications Orderline

PO Box 777

London SE1 6XH

Telephone: 0870 155 54 55 (8 am to 6 pm Monday to Friday)
Fax: 0162 372 45 24

E-mail: dh@prolog.uk.com 
The NHS in England: Operating Framework for 2007/08

The document is designed to help local NHS staff shape services around the

needs of their local communities. It explains why there is a need to continue

embedding reform in 2007/08, signalling a further shift towards building a self-improving system driven by local priorities.

It is available online at www.dh.gov.uk  or available from the DH Publications

Orderline as above

National Service Frameworks (NSFs)
These frameworks set national standards and define service models for a defined service or care group; put in place strategies to support implementation; establish performance milestones against which progress within an agreed time-scale will be measured, and form one of a range of measures to raise quality and decrease variations in service, introduced in The New NHS and A First Class Service. The NHS Plan re-emphasised the role of NSFs as drivers in delivering the Modernisation Agenda.

The frameworks are online at www.dh.gov.uk  or available from the DH

Publications Orderline as above

Local Structure of the NHS

The PCT is accountable to South Central Strategic Health Authority (SCSHA). It is responsible for the NHS organisations in the counties of Berkshire,

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire, Hampshire and the Isle of Wight.
Further information about the SCSHA can be found on the website address:

http://www.southcentral.nhs.uk under the heading Local NHS. The address for the South Central Strategic Health Authority is:

South Central Strategic Health Authority

First Floor

Rivergate House

Newbury Business Park

London Road

Newbury

Berkshire

RG14 2PZ

Tel: 01635 275500

Fax: 01635 33983
2. WHO WE ARE 

What do we do?

Oxfordshire PCT was formed on 1 October 2006 as part of a national reconfiguration of Primary Care Trusts to reduce their number from 303 to 152. In Oxfordshire, five Primary Care Trusts were merged to form a single PCT with a single Board and management team.

The Chair of Oxfordshire PCT is Fred Hucker and the Chief Executive is Andrea Young. The Chair of the Clinical Executive is Stephen Richards.
Oxfordshire PCT serves a population of 592,329 and controls a budget of £692m.
It commissions services from an increasingly diverse range of providers, which include; major health providers within the County and elsewhere, PCT directly provided services, other public sector bodies and from a range of independent sector organisations. 

It also contracts primary care services from independent contractors, including 82 GP practices, 98 pharmacies, 100 dental practices and 75 optometry practices. 

Oxfordshire PCT is a direct provider of a wide range of community based clinical services, serving all age groups, and widely distributed across the county. Directly provided services constitute £54m of the current £692m budget. The PCT has a workforce of approximately 2,500 staff. 

The PCT also provides:

· nine community hospitals 

· adult’s and children’s nursing and therapy services 

· health visiting 

· sexual health services 

· out of hours care 

Some of these services are formally integrated with other public sector bodies, some working to single management structures. 

Key partner agencies include:

· Oxfordshire County Council 

· Five District Councils including Cherwell, Oxford City, South Oxfordshire, Vale of White Horse, and West Oxfordshire 

· Thames Valley police functions are managed locally through Oxfordshire Basic Command Unit. There are two Universities and two Further Education colleges within the county. 

· A countywide Patient & Public Involvement Forum 
The new PCT is committed to ensuring that in everything it does, it adheres to

a core set of organisational values. These are:

a) 
Openness and Transparency – this means that in all our activities we

adhere to the highest standards of honesty and integrity which will

stand the test of probity.

b) 
Innovation – this means that we actively seek creative excellence

sometimes taking risks to achieve change for the better.

c) 
Respect– this means that we aim to treat patients, our staff and those

we work with in other organisations with the compassion, dignity and understanding that we ourselves would want.
d)
Quality– this means that we are always seeking to improve the way we

conduct our business striving for the highest levels of safety, efficiency

and professionalism.

e)
Positive Patient Experience - this means we are accessible,

accountable, courteous and efficient and that we understand and are

driven by the needs of the people we serve.
Further information 

For further information on these topics you may wish to visit the Oxfordshire PCT website at:  www.oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk or contact:

Communications Team

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

The role of the PCT’s Board 

The PCT Board is responsible for the overall performance of the PCT. Primarily it ensures the PCT complies with national direction, probity, setting and attaining local objectives and achieving financial balance.

The PCT Board is the ultimate decision making body within the PCT. 

Trust Board Remit 

The Board is responsible for:
· Representing the interest of local people 

· Overall strategy and direction (with advice from the Clinical Executive) 

· The Local Delivery Plan and major investment decisions 

· Financial and risk management 

· Corporate governance and policies (e.g. human resources) 

· Underpinning strategies (e.g. Information Management & Technology, Improving Working Lives) 

· Ultimate responsibility for everything the PCT does 

· Ensuring financial balance 
The Board's objectives are to direct the organisation and oversee its responsible governance.
Its key objectives are:
· Ensuring strategic direction 

· Monitoring corporate performance and specifying improvements 

· Meeting legal responsibilities 

· Ensuring good Board performance.
PCT Board members include local clinicians, managers and lay people. Oxfordshire PCT consists of seven Non-Executive Directors, including the Chair of the Board; six PCT Executive Director members, including the Chief Executive, Director of Finance and Performance, Director of Public Health, Director of Provider Services (non-voting), Director of Planning and System Reform, Director of Commissioning and the Chair of the Clinical Executive. The Deputy Director, Governance and Clinical Standards provides nurses advice and leadership (non-voting).
The Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors are appointed by the Appointments Commission, an organisation established in April 2001 to specialise in the recruitment, training and appraisal of people for board level public appointments to NHS bodies, ministerial advisory bodies and other arm's length bodies in England.
The Board usually meets in public every month and members of the public are

very welcome to attend. Dates, times and venues of Board meetings, together

with agendas, minutes and papers are available on the PCT website www.oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk or from marion.davis@oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk 
The Role of the Clinical Executive Committee  

Effective clinical engagement across the PCT is a necessary precondition to successful delivery of the health reform agenda and it is a crucial part of the structural and cultural architecture of Oxfordshire PCT. 

The Clinical Executive is a small strategic body that works closely with the PCT’s management team to ensure effective delivery of PCT strategic and operational objectives.

A new Clinical Executive has been formed to help steer the new Oxfordshire PCT through the healthcare challenges and opportunities facing it. It is made up of up to six primary care clinicians, of whom at least one must be a nurse or allied health professional. The Chair of the Clinical Executive is a member of the PCT Board.

The existing legislation allows for at least one but not more than seven clinically appointed members, in addition to officer members, including the Chief Executive Officer, Director of Finance, Director of Public Health and a person nominated by the relevant social services authority. Clinicians form the majority on the executive. Other officer members of the PCT can be in attendance at the Clinical Executive rather than full members.

The relationship between the PCT Chair, the Clinical Executive Chair and the Chief Executive Officer (‘three at the top’) is key to ensuring cohesive and dynamic management of the strategic agenda. 

The Clinical Executive is made up of clinical representatives from each of the five former PCTs in Oxfordshire and is chaired by Dr. Stephen Richards.

Membership

· Dr. Andy Chivers 

· Dr. John Galuszka 

· Dr. John Walton 

· Jackie Moss 

· Dr. Stephen Richards (Chair) 

· Dr Richard Green, Clinical Governance Lead 

Further Information - Trust Structure and Key Documents

The Trust is able to provide the public with further details of our organisational

structure, including information about the Trust Board and sub -committees. We are also able to provide access to, or copies of, our:

• Register of Interests

• Establishment Orders

• Standing Orders

• Standing Financial Instructions

• Scheme of Delegation

• Codes of Conduct and other governance documents.

All further information is freely available through our Freedom of Information Officer, although we will withhold information that is exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, or is personal, confidential information about individuals and is protected under the Data Protection Act 1998.

The Trust works in partnership with a number of non-NHS organisations to

ensure local delivery of services and their development in accordance with

national guidance and local needs. These partner organisations include local

authorities, educational establishments, police, prison service, probation, the

private sector and non-profit and community groups. In addition, the Trust

maintains strong links with Social Services, service users and carer groups.

Some of the organisations with which the Trust has links are listed on the PCT

website.

3. FINANCIAL AND FUNDING INFORMATION 

This section explains how we obtain the funding for our services and the framework on how funding is allocated within the PCT.  The current set of audited annual accounts are available. 

Primary Health Care Trusts (PCTs) are governed by Act of Parliament, mainly the National Health Service Act 1977 (NHS Act 1977), the National Health Service and Community Care Act 1990 (NHS & CC Act 1990) as amended by the Health Authorities Act 1995 and the Health Act 1999.

The Primary Care Trusts (Membership, Procedure and Administration Arrangements) Regulations 2000 No 89 require the PCT to adopt Standing Orders for the regulation of its proceedings and business.  In accordance with the Corporate Governance Framework the PCT has adopted Standing Financial Instructions (SFIs) as an integral part of Standing Orders setting out the responsibilities of individuals.  All officers of the Trust must comply with these arrangements.

Review of Standing orders – Standing Orders shall be reviewed annually by the Board.

The Standing Financial Instructions detail the financial responsibilities, policies and procedures adopted by the PCT.  They are designed to ensure that the PCT’s financial transactions are carried out in accordance with the law and Government policy in order to achieve probity, accuracy, economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  They should be used in conjunction with the Schedule of Decisions Reserved to the Board and the Scheme of Delegation adopted by the PCT.

The Standing Financial Instructions identify the financial responsibilities that apply to everyone working for the PCT and its constituent organisations. They do not provide procedural advice and should be read in conjunction with the detailed departmental and financial procedure notes.

Staff should comply with the national guidance contained in HSG 1993/5 Standards of Business Conduct for NHS Staff.

Budget Setting

The Director of Finance monitors financial performance against budget and plans on a monthly basis. This is reported to the Board and the Department of Health via the Strategic Health Authority.
NHS Service Agreements for Provision of Services

The Chief Executive, as accountable officer, is responsible for ensuring the PCT enters into suitable Service Agreements with service commissioners for the provision of NHS services.  In discharging the responsibility the Chief Executive takes into account:

· The standards of service quality expected.

· The relevant National Service Framework (if any).

· The provision of reliable information on cost and volume of services.

· The NHS National Performance Assessment Framework. 
Commissioning

The PCT has responsibilities for commissioning services on behalf of the resident population.  This will require the PCT to work in partnership with the Health Authority, local NHS Trusts, PCTs, local authority, users, carers and the voluntary sector to deliver health improvement through the achievements of Local Delivery Plans (LDPs).

The Chief Executive as the accountable officer has responsibility for ensuring services are commissioned in accordance with the priorities agreed in plans.  This will involve ensuring Service Level Agreements (SLAs) are put in place with relevant providers, based upon integrated care pathways. 
4. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The Trust routinely publishes a large amount of corporate information which is

publicly available. These can be found on our website at www.oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk 
· Oxfordshire PCT Strategy 2007 – 2013 - Oxfordshire PCT is ambitious about improving the health and wellbeing of local people. This is the PCT’s first five year strategy, and it sets out our vision for transforming health care in the county.
· Oxfordshire PCT Communications and Patient and Public Involvement Strategy 2007 – 2013 - This strategy provides a framework for improving and strengthening the quality and delivery of communications and public involvement activities to support the PCT in all aspects of its work.  It is available on the PCTs website or by contacting:
Patient and Public Involvement Manager

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

· Annual Reports. - Provide statutory information about our finances and staffing. 

· Trust Board papers - Deal with the day-to-day running of the PCT and provide information about how decisions affecting local healthcare are made. 

· Your Guide to Local Health Services - is produced each year to signpost patients to local healthcare services. 

· Public Health Annual Reports - which summarises the work of Oxfordshire Public Health team. 

· Healthcare Commission Reports are produced annually and provide a ‘measurement’ of the PCTs performance in line with key targets. NHS Trusts are given a rating based on set criteria. Find out more about our performance. 
· Newsletter - Oxfordshire PCT produces a quarterly newsletter which highlights some of the PCT’s work, looks at key issues facing the PCT, both locally and nationally; and promotes forthcoming local health events and campaigns.  It is available by contacting:
Communications Manager

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

· Meeting Agendas, Minutes and Papers

Board papers are freely available from the PCT website or by contacting the Board secretary at:

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

RG30 2BA

Professional Executive Committee papers may be available on request from the executive office at the above address.
Further information

For further information on these topics you may wish to visit the Oxfordshire PCT website at http://www.oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk.

N.B.

The Trust will not provide material that is exempt under the Freedom of

Information Act 2000 or Data Protection Act 1998.

5. AIMS, TARGETS AND ACHIEVEMENTS 

The PCT’s core aims and commissioning priorities are set out in its five year strategy for the period 2008-2013. This can be found on the PCT website in the Trust Board papers for November 29th 2007. 

The targets and in year measures through which the PCT will track progress on delivering this strategy in 2008/9 are contained within the Operational Plan. This document (due for publication in March 2008) will summarise:

· The services the PCT invests in through its baseline budget and how those contribute to its core aims

· The areas of new investment planned by the PCT for 2008/9

· The measures of success through which the PCT will monitor delivery of its strategy over the next year . 

· The PCT three year financial plan

· Enabling work the PCT needs to undertake to ensure that it and other NHS Trusts in Oxfordshire have the capacity and capability to deliver the plan

The Operational Plan supercedes the previous LDP. It covers local, regional and national NHS priorities and targets and the joint targets being agreed with local authorities through the Local Area Agreement. Once signed off by the PCT Board and approved by the SHA the PCT will be held closely to account over the next twelve months for delivery of the service, activity and financial goals set out within the Operational Plan.

Information also included in this class will be found in the Clinical Governance Action Plans and Progress Reports that are reviewed quarterly and approved by the Trust Board.  Material included within those reports includes:

· Assurance Framework
· Clinical Audit

· Clinical Governance

· Risk Management functions

· Procedures for adverse Incident Reporting

· Policies on support for clinicians requiring assistance

· Action required to achieve the aims of National Service Frameworks – sent to Sula Wiltshire
Our Performance

The principle reason for measuring NHS performance is to ensure accountability to the public and parliament for the quality of service it delivers. It also enables clinicians and managers to undertake meaningful benchmarking – that is comparing their performance results and methods against those of their peers so that they can identify scope for improvement and share knowledge of best practice.
Annual health check

In 2005/06, our standards of care were assessed by the Healthcare Commission which promotes improvement in the quality of the NHS. The PCT is required to declare how it is meeting a number of core standards which set a level of service that all patients should be able to expect from the NHS. Information and data is collected for verification by the Healthcare Commission and our final ratings for 2005/06 are outlined in the tables below. There are two elements to the new assessment process – quality and use of resources.

The aim of the annual health check is to promote improvements in healthcare for patients and the public. It replaces the old system of 'star ratings' and looks at a much broader range of issues than ever before.

Oxfordshire PCT's 2006/07 self-assessment submission to the Healthcare Commission Core and Development Standard Declaration contains details of how the PCT has performed in the last year. The submission can be downloaded in pdf format from the right hand column of this web page.

The PCTs submission is checked by the Healthcare Commission against a wide range of surveillance information and the Annual Health Check results are published in October each year. 
Annual performance ratings 2005/06 for former Oxfordshire PCTs

The five Oxfordshire PCTs received a ‘fair to good’ score for the quality element which covers achievement of national targets and standards. For the use of resources’ element, the PCTs in Oxfordshire that broke even at the end of March 2005/06 received a ‘good’ rating while those PCTs that were overspent received a ‘weak’ rating.
Quality of Services

The overall rating is assessed by determining how the PCT performed against core standards, existing targets and new targets. All organisations either fully or almost met the core standards requirements. 

All organisations at least partly or almost met existing targets. The PCTs all performed well for new targets with South East Oxfordshire PCT achieving a score of fair and all other Oxfordshire PCTs achieving a score of excellent for this area. 

All PCTs received strong performance ratings on reducing levels of smoking and substance misuse achieving ‘good’ or ‘excellent’ scores. All PCTs were rated ‘excellent’ for achieving new national targets, except for South East Oxfordshire which was rated ‘fair’. Particular successes include the introduction of community matrons in line with plans and processes in place to control infection.
Use of Resources
In all cases where a weak score was achieved for use of resources this was primarily as a result of failure to achieve a break even position in 2005/06. It is notable that for Oxford City PCT financial standing was found to be strong, as all financial targets were achieved over the last three years. 

The overall ratings for each PCT are detailed below with a further table highlighting the categories within the Quality of Services section

For further information the point of contact is:
Governance Manager

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford, OX4 2LH

6. OUR SERVICES 
Our Services:
The local health services provided by the PCT include:

• community based services to support adults and children, including

community nursing, health visiting and school nurses

• community hospitals

• rehabilitation services

• pharmacy and medicines management

• public health and health improvement

• podiatry

• physiotherapy

• speech & language therapy

• nutrition & dietetics

• occupational therapy

Other services

• Acute hospital services in the PCT area are mainly provided by Oxford Radcliffe NHS Hospitals Trust www.orh.nhs.uk 

• South Central Ambulance Service NHS Trust provides patient

transportation http://www.southcentralambulance.nhs.uk
• We commission mental health services from Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire Mental Health NHS Trust www.obmh.nhs.uk 
• We are accountable to the South Central Strategic Health Authority

http://www.southcentral.nhs.uk/
Recent Decisions Approved by the PCT Board

All recent decisions and service variations approved by the PCT Board, along

with the reasons behind these decisions can be found in the minutes and papers of Board meetings published on the PCT website at www.oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk 

For further information about major decisions and service variations, members of the public can write to the Chief Executive

Chief Executive

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

Or to the Chairperson:

Chair

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust: at the above address

Directory of Patient Services

A guide to patient services, entitled Your Guide to Local Services, is available in the Publications section of the Oxfordshire PCT website under the

Publications heading.  A full list of services provided by the PCT will be available by September 2008.

Non-Clinical Services

Non clinical services include:

• Buildings, Land, Plant and Non-medical Equipment

• Catering and Food Hygiene

• Emergency Planning

• Environmental Management

• Fire Safety

• Health and Safety

• Security

• Transport

• Waste Management

• Finance &Business Management

• Commissioning Performance Management

Patient Experience

The PCT will take a proactive approach to ensuring we understand the

views of people living in Oxfordshire and their experience of using local

health services and to acting on any concerns raised. As well as

people being able to highlight issues through our complaints processes

and Patient Advisory and Liaison Services, we will seek out views

through patient groups and public and patient surveys. The PCT also

intends to develop innovative community web based mechanisms to

monitor public satisfaction and seek views. Any concerns about quality

of services will be investigated and acted upon. 
Commissioning

Commissioning is the process whereby resources are allocated appropriately to the health and social needs of the population in line with national targets and local needs.  The process is cyclical; starting with needs assessment, the setting of priorities, quality and cost criteria and the monitoring of outcomes.  It must be integrated across organisations wherever appropriate and possible. Commissioning is the on-going design and review of services to ensure that patient needs are met, and incorporates the ‘purchasing’ element of negotiation of costs and volumes through the Local Delivery Plan (LDP), as only one element of this process. Sent to Alan Webb
7. THE PRIMARY CARE TRUST & INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONERS

The PCT works closely with the following independent contractors:

General Practitioner Click here to find a practice in your area 
Dentists Click here to find a dentist in your area
Pharmacists Click here to find a pharmacist in your area
The Primary Care Contracting Team, at Oxfordshire PCT can be contacted for further information.  The contact point for further information at the PCT is:
Head of Primary Care Contracting

Oxfordshire PCT

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

Optometry Services

Optometrists are primary health care specialists trained to examine the eyes to detect defects in vision, signs of injury, ocular diseases or abnormality and problems with general health. A detailed examination of the eye can reveal conditions such as high blood pressure or diabetes. Optometrists make a diagnosis, offer advice and when necessary prescribe, fit and supply contact

lenses or glasses. Referrals for specialists advice may be required, patients may require a corrective lens or no further treatment.

Thames Valley Primary Care Agency (TVPCA)

The TVPCA is hosted by Berkshire West PCT, but is jointly funded and provides core services to Berkshire West, Berkshire East, Oxfordshire, Buckinghamshire and Milton Keynes PCTs and exists to add value to the NHS, supporting frontline healthcare by operating local and national services which are cost effective and efficient.

As well as managing core services TVPCA is provides bespoke services

specifically commissioned by individual PCTs.

Core Services are:

• 
Patient Registrations – to manage the process of patient registration with a GP practice

• 
Medical Records – the transfer, retrieval and archiving of Medical

Records

• 
Screening Services – to ensure that all eligible women receive cervical and breast screening

• 
Direct and Indirect Payments – to make direct and in-direct payments to GPs, dentists, pharmacists and opticians

• 
Probity and Performance – to validate and check financial claims made by GPs, dentists, pharmacists and opticians

•
Support Services – to provide a secure and confidential supplies and

delivery service

• 
Information Analysis and Data Quality – to ensure accurate data is held on our system to allow accurate payments are made to GPs

The address for Thames Valley Primary Care Agency is:

7-9 Cremyll Road

Caversham

Reading

RG1 8NQ

Tel: 0118 918 3333

8. REPORTS AND INDEPENDENT ENQUIRIES  

The list of bodies which monitor and inspect the PCT, can be found in Part 3 of the scheme.
9. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

For the full list of Oxfordshire PCT policies and procedures please contact:
Governance Manager

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust
Jubilee House
5510 John Smith Drive
Oxford Business Park South
Oxford
OX4 2LH 
10. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT AND CONSULTATION

The NHS Plan (July 2000)* set out the Government’s intention that patients should be ‘at the heart of the NHS’. Patient and public involvement should be central to service planning and provision and a major driver for service improvement. Section 11 of the Health and Social Care Act 2001* further strengthened this commitment by placing a duty on NHS organisations to

involve and consult patients and the public:

not just when a major change is proposed, but in ongoing service planning;

not just in the consideration of a proposal, but in the development of that proposal and;

In decisions about general service delivery, not just major changes.

Section 7 of the Health and Social Care Act also requires NHS organisations to consult the local Overview and Scrutiny Committee on any proposal for a substantial development or variation of the health services. Oxfordshire PCT and other local health organisations have worked with the Oxfordshire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to define what constitutes ‘substantial’ in

this context and will continue to review this opinion.

As Stronger Local Voice was published in July 2006 and legislation developed from this consultation gives PCTs and SHAs a new statutory duty to respond to local people, explaining the activities they are undertaking as a result of patient and public feedback on their services.

More information about these documents is available on the Department of Health website:

http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/index.htm 
Our Patient Advice and Liaison Service is delivered in a way that allows patients, carers and members of the public to ask for information or discuss a problem with any of our PCT staff who are trained in PALS customer care techniques.
Communications and Public Involvement Strategy 2007 – 2013

The Communications and Public Involvement Strategy will address health needs in Oxfordshire, communicating with and involving all sections of the community. This will not be a single process but rather a cycle of continuous improvement, frequently occurring through many small changes.

We acknowledge the valuable contribution people can make as patients, service users, carers, staff and members of the wider community in promoting healthier lifestyles, setting priorities, planning and developing services and monitoring outcomes. We aspire to involve patients, carers, public and our staff in all our initiatives, making special efforts to engage individuals, groups and communities whose voices have traditionally not been heard. We will embrace a systematic, integrated and inclusive approach to learning from patient and carer experiences, the public, staff and other stakeholders.

A full copy of the Strategy is available from the:

Patient and Public Involvement Team

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

Or by email at:

Public.involvement@oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk 
Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS)

The PCT is aware of the need for patients and service users to be able to contact the Trust for help and guidance with the NHS Services with which they come into contact. This is the purpose of the Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS).

The PALS service offers on the spot help, advice and support in an informal,

friendly and confidential manner.

If you would like more information please contact:
Head of Communications
Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

How you can get involved!

We want to keep you informed and we want you to tell us what you think about the services we provide.

There are more ways than ever before for you to get involved in helping develop and improve health services for your community. You can help us develop services by giving us a patient perspective of services through:

· taking part in a working group 

· attending an occasional focus group or workshop 

· responding to a questionnaire or consultation document 

· letting us know about your own and others' experience of our services (through contacting the Patient Advice and Liaison Service) 

· commenting on our public leaflets, publications, and website 

· attending our public Trust Board meetings 

A national survey is carried out each year by the Healthcare Commission and is the biggest single test of patients' opinions of care in the country.

If you would like to become directly involved in working with Oxfordshire PCT and in discussing our services, please contact the Patient and Public Involvement Manager at public.involvement@oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk 
11. REGULAR PUBLICATIONS & INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC

The PCT produces a range of publications, some of which are corporate publications, like the Annual Report and the Guide to Local Services, which are produced annually; and some of which are designed to signpost patients to services or simply for information.  These can obtained from the PCT website.
Guidance and information leaflets relevant to the Primary Care Trust and published by the PCT can be requested from:

Communications Team
Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust

Jubilee House
5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

Email: communications@oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk 
12. COMPLAINTS PROCEDURES 

Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust welcomes comments relating to our services whether good or bad. In the event of making a complaint it will be dealt with in accordance with Oxfordshire PCT complaints policy.  If you wish to make a complaint, you can speak or write to any member of staff who will take the details of your complaint and what you wish us to do to put things right for you.  It is important that you make your complaint as soon as possible after the event.  

If you would prefer to speak to somebody more senior either ask a member of staff for details or telephone the PCT complaints representative on 01865 336786.  You can ask our staff for help in making a complaint, or writing your letter, or you may wish to contact ICAS.

You can write to:

Andrea Young
Chief Executive
Oxfordshire PCT
Jubilee House
5510 John Smith Drive
Oxford Business Park South
Oxford
OX4 2LH
13. HUMAN RESOURCES

The Human Resources Strategy for Oxfordshire PCT covers issues associated with the PCT workforce which are seen to be of key strategic importance for the future success of the PCT and the quality of services that it delivers.  The Human Resources Strategy is about ensuring that we have:

· Sufficient staff, with the right skills and knowledge, working in the right areas.

· A working environment and culture which enables staff to thrive and feel that they are working for a good employer.

· Access to Human Resources and Training expertise that supports managers and ensures that they have the skills and resources to implement the HR Strategy and that through achieving this we will all be able to deliver the PCTs Strategic Direction. 

The HR Strategy has woven through it the targets and objectives that are outlined in the national frameworks including ‘Working Together’, the ‘Improving Working Lives Standard’ and the ‘NHS Plan’.

It is widely recognised that learning and development are essential elements of effective individual, team and organisational performance, which is necessary to ensure the delivery of high quality patient centred care in the NHS.

The PCT is committed to providing education, training and development opportunities for all staff, which are equitable, accessible and as flexible as possible, to enable patients and their families to benefit from a highly skilled and motivated workforce, wherever services are delivered.  
There are a number of useful reference documents regarding NHS guidance and standards in this area and these are available online:

•
ACAS site 

www.acas.org.uk
•
Draft standards in conflict Management www.empnto.co.uk•

The responsible manager for Human Resources within the PCT is:
Head of Human Resources

Oxfordshire PCT

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

14. COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE PRESS AND MEDIA RELEASES

The Media Team handle media enquiries for local primary care services which includes a range of front line services - community nurses, health visitors, GPs, dentists, opticians, pharmacists and a range of specialist therapists. 
Recent Headlines and copies of the PCT Newsletter can be found on the PCT website at http://www.oxfordshirepct.nhs.uk/news/default.aspx 

The PCT contact for press and media relations is:

Communications Team

Oxfordshire PCT

Jubilee House

5510 John Smith Drive

Oxford Business Park South

Oxford

OX4 2LH

15. ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION
Oxfordshire PCT currently owns and leases premises across Oxfordshire for the delivery of primary care and community services.

A range of clinical and non-clinical support services are based in these premises.

Estate and Environmental Information

· A large proportion of the estate management and maintenance is outsourced through a local Service Level Agreement with another NHS Trust.

· Annual estate information returns are submitted which reflect the condition and performance (including energy consumption) for the PCT estate.

· Regular audits and surveys assess the use, physical condition, functionality and safety of the estate. These include fire safety surveys, security reviews and the Patient Environment Assessment Tool (PEAT) audit.

· An estate strategy is being developed which will guide how we use and develop the estate in order to enable the effective delivery of our services.

· Policies and strategies which support effective energy management and reduction of environmental impact are being developed.

For further information please contact:
Capital Development Manager

Oxfordshire PCT

5510 John Smith Drive,

Oxford Business Park South

OX4 2LH

16. THIS PUBLICATION SCHEME  

In this class we will publish any changes we make to this Publication Scheme,

the criteria on which our information management policies are made and a

referral point for all enquires regarding information management generally in the PCT. We will also publish any proposed changes or additions to publications already available.

Cost of Information

• For the most part, we will not charge for hard copies (printed copies)

• Copying onto media (e.g. CD ROM – computer disc).

• Some information is available free, but for others there may be a charge.

• The charges will vary according to how information is made available.

Charges are as follows:

a) Via the Trust’s Web Site

• Free of charge, although any charges for Internet Service provider and

personal printing costs would have to be met by the individual.

• For those without Internet access a single print-out from the website would

be available by post from the Publication Scheme Co-ordinator by

personal application providing two working days notice is given in

advance.

• Requests for multiple printouts, or for archived copies of documents, which

are no longer accessible or available on the web may attract a charge for

the retrieval, photocopy, postage etc. We will let you know the cost and

charges that will have to be paid in advance.

• We will not provide printouts of other organisation’s websites.

b) Leaflets and brochures

• Leaflets or booklets on, for example, services we offer to the public, will be

free of charge. A list is available from our website.

• “Glossy” or bound paper copies, or in some cases a CD Rom, video or

other mediums, will be charged for on an individual basis. Such

publications will be made available by the Freedom of Information Officer.

c) e-mail will be free of charge unless it says otherwise

The charges will be reviewed regularly.

Copyright

The material available through this Publication Scheme is subject to the PCT’s copyright unless otherwise indicated. Unless expressly indicated on the material to the contrary, it may be reproduced free of charge in any format or medium, provided it is reproduced accurately and not used in a misleading manner. Where any of the copyright items in this Scheme are being republished or copied to others, you must identify the source of the material and acknowledge the copyright status. Permission to reproduce material does not extend to any material accessed through the Publication Scheme that is the copyright of third parties. You must obtain authorisation to reproduce such material from the copyright holders concerned. For HMSO Guidance Notes on a range of copyright issues, see the HMSO website: www.hmso.gov.uk/guides.htm  
or contact:

HMSO Licensing Division

St Clements House

2-16 Colegate

Norwich

NR31BQ

Tel: 01603 621000

Fax: 01603 723000

Email: HMSO Licensing

Part B: Bodies which monitor/inspect our performance

The bodies involved in the monitoring and/or inspection of our services include:

Audit Commission (www.audit-commission.gov.uk)

Child Protection Teams

Healthcare Commission Confidential Inquiry into Suicides and Homicides

Coroner’s Offices

Directorate of Counter Fraud Services (www.dh.gov.uk/dcfs)

District Audit (www.district-audit.gov.uk)

Environmental Health offices

General Medical Council (www.gmc-uk.org)

Health and Safety Executive (www.hse.gov.uk)

Health Care Commission (www.healthcarecommission.org.uk)

Health Service Ombudsman (www.chi.gov.uk/eng/about/chi-others)

Health Professions Council (www.hpc-uk.org)

Home Office Mental Health Unit (www.homeoffice.gov.uk)

Medicines Devices Agency (MDA) (www.medical-devices.gov.uk )

Medicines Control Agency (www.mca.gov.uk)

Mental Health Act Commission (www.mhac.trent.nhs.uk)

National Clinical Assessment Authority (www.ncaa.nhs.uk)

National Patient Safety Agency (www.npsa.nhs.uk)

NHS Estates (www.nhsestates.gov.uk)

NHS Litigation Authority (www.nhsla.com)

Nursing and Midwifery Council (www.nmc-uk.org)

South Central Strategic Health Authority http://www.southcentral.nhs.uk/

Useful Resources

Web sites:

www.informationcommissioner.gov.uk

This is the Information Commissioner’s web site

www.lcd.gov.uk

This is the Lord Chancellor’s Department web site

www.foi.nhs.uk

This is the NHS Freedom of Information web site

• NHS Openness Code- www.dh.uk/nhsexec/codemain.htm

• Freedom Of Information Act 2000

www.legislation.hmso.gov.uk/acts2000.20000036.htm

• Freedom of Information Act 2000 Explanatory Notes

www.legislation.hmso.gov.uk/acts/en/2000en36.htm

• Code of Practice under Section 45 FOI Act 2000 www.lcd.gov.uk

• Code of Practice under Section 46 FOI Act 2000 www.lcd.gov.uk 
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